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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION

San Diego Gas & Electric Company,


Docket Nos. EL00-95-001

Complainant,


  EL00-95-004  

v.





  EL00-95-005

Sellers of Energy and Ancillary Services


  EL00-95-006

  Into Markets Operated by the California

  
  EL00-95-007 

  Independent System Operator and the


  EL00-95-010

  California Power Exchange,



  EL00-95-011

Respondents
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  EL00-95-039

  EL00-95-045

  EL00-95-046

  EL00-95-047

Investigation of Practices of the California

Docket Nos. EL00-98-001

  Independent System Operator and the


  EL00-98-004

  California Power Exchange



  EL00-98-005

  EL00-98-006

  EL00-98-008

  EL00-98-010

  EL00-98-011

  EL00-98-018

  EL00-98-037

  EL00-98-042

  EL00-98-043

  EL00-98-044

CAlifornians for Renewable Energy, Inc. ( CARE),



Complainant,

v.

Independent Energy Producers, Inc., and All

Docket No. EL01-2-001

  Sellers of Energy and Ancillary Services Into 

  Markets Operated by the California Independent

  System Operator and the California Power 

  Exchange; All Scheduling Coordinators Acting

  on Behalf of the Above Sellers; California 

  Independent System Operator Corporation; and

  California Power Exchange Corporation,

Respondents

CAlifornians for Renewable Energy, Inc. 

v.
Docket No. EL01-65-000

British Columbia Hydro and Power

Authority, Powerex Corporation, Southern

Energy Marketing Company (Mirant),

and Bonneville Power Administration 

Order Directing Staff Investigation


Docket No. PA02-2-000

State of California, ex. rel. Bill Lockyer




v.
Docket No. EL02-71-000

British Columbia Power Exchange Corp., 

Coral Power, LLC, Dynegy Power Marketing, Inc., 

Enron Power Marketing, Inc., Mirant Americas 

Energy Marketing, LP, Reliant Energy Services, Inc., 

Williams Energy Marketing & Trading Co.,

All Other Public Utility Sellers of Energy and 

Ancillary Services to the California Energy Resources 

Scheduling Division of the California Department of 

Water Resources, and

All Other Public Utility Sellers of Energy and 

Ancillary Services into Markets Operated by the 

California Power Exchange and 

California Independent System Operator,

CARE’S ANSWER TO RESPONSE OF COMPETITIVE SUPPLIER GROUP, DUKE ENERGY, AND THE CALIFORNIA PARTIES, ON CONSOLIDATION

Introduction


On March 24, 2002 CARE filed its procedural motion for consolidation of it’s complaint dockets EL01-2 and EL01-65, along with the California Parties’ March 20, 2002 complaint in docket EL02-71, and the Commission’s Investigation in docket PA02-2, into the San Diego Gas and Electric complaint under docket EL00-95. CARE wishes to reply to the answers in opposition to CARE’s motion received from the Competitive Supplier Group, Duke Energy, and the California Parties.
 
In adding to the opposition to consolidation of EL02-71-000, EL00-95-000 and/or PA02-02-00, the California Parties are acting in concert with wholesalers of energy to deprive Californians of their constitutional right to proper notice and a fair hearing on the existence, meaning, effects, implementation, etc., of the purported “energy crises” in both the spot market and forward markets.  This has taken place from 01-01-00 forward. 

CARE concurs with the State’s contention that “if and when the Commission finds that the Attorney General is entitled to a remedy in EL02-71-000, it may be appropriate to revisit the [CARE consolidation] issue."
  CARE also concurs, to some extent, with Duke Energy’s and the Competitive Supplier Group’s contention that at this point consolidation may be "premature.”  CARE never asked for an immediate hearing.  We did not propose a specific date for public meetings in San Francisco.  Nor did we rule out preliminary proceedings on matters pertinent to energy crisis events occurring since 01-01-00.  Consolidation and preliminary meetings to get the lay of the land, so to speak, are not merely necessary.  They are absolutely essential to give the public a comprehensive view of what has taken place in the very recent past, what is going on right now, and what's coming up next.  Without the comprehensive, consolidated approach we are proposing the public has no chance at all to become well informed enough to intelligently and meaningfully participate in this ongoing governmental process of unprecedented significance and magnitude.  The public has no chance to play any kind of part, or have any kind of meaningful influence.  

This is particularly true when compounded by your ongoing refusal to even consider the subject of enabling, enhancing or protecting the public's right to associate and fairly participate in the governmental decision making process.  Again, we ask you to reconsider your position on what we've been referring to as the compensation or reimbursement of public participation costs, which would allow retention of truly independent experts to double-check (and keep honest) the myriad of experts employed by and available to other parties to these proceedings.  

We cannot stress enough that these defects are of constitutional origin and proportion.  In addition to due process violations, CARE and the public it represents have not been afforded equal protection of the law.  The constitutional provisions violated include, without limitation, the First Amendment rights of association, speech and access to administrative as well as judicial tribunals.  Once again, please be forewarned that in any future judicial or quasi-judicial proceedings, CARE, and the public for whose exclusive benefit CARE is acting, will raise these and other constitutional issues and seek appropriate relief for the constitutional violations that continue unabated and unheeded. 

Other than in the manner and to the extent stated in the second paragraph, above, CARE adamantly disagrees with and objects to the California Parties’ and wholesaler Duke Energy’s
 and the Competitive Supplier Group’s other findings on CARE’s consolidation motion.  These findings are not only inaccurate, incomplete and misleading; they are unsupported by substantial evidence, and actually help prove the California Parties have been acting in concert with Duke Energy and the Competitive Supplier Group to deny CARE and the lay public a fair hearing on these matters

 
Although, in typically unfair fashion, the FERC gave CARE no credit for having long demanded the type of investigation FERC has finally agreed to conduct,
 CARE is very anxious to see FERC staff carry it out.  Without undue interference, CARE and other members of the public seek a fair opportunity to review and participate in the FERC's investigation.   We do not want the investigation unduly restricted or delayed.  All we are asking for is an opportunity for a fair hearing on these matters in San Francisco, California, at a time subject to FERC discretion.  We want to help, but at the very least keep us apprised of what is going on, and let us have some input in the proceedings.

CARE couldn't agree more with the Chief Judge's recognition that despite "the convenience and desirability of holding the entire hearing at the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission headquarters in Washington, DC, ... in this proceeding local public interest is such that a local hearing will bring credit on the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission through this publicity and at the same time provide an opportunity for a large segment of the population with significant interest in the case to see their government at work first hand."  Amen to that, as long as we have an opportunity to "see their government at work first hand" including full and fair participation that includes a fair opportunity to have an input into and influence the ongoing governmental decision making process.

EL02-71

To our knowledge the decision on what amount refunds are to be is dependent on the final outcome of the deliberations on the Mitigated Market Clearing Prices (“MMCP”) by (public and private) wholesalers of energy into the markets operated by the ISO, PX, and now CERS, in docket EL00-95-045. CARE wishes to summarize here the pertinent and relevant portions of the California Parties’ complaint in docket EL02-71 as taken verbatim from the complaint. CARE position is that any failure on the part of Wholesalers to properly report the rates charged for power sold to the ISO, PX, and CERS is unlawful and subject to refund and therefore such market basis for such rates are void.  The absence of a lawful rate under a market basis therefore requires refunds be based on the difference between the rate charged and the cost basis (not market basis) of the MMCP. 

The Attorney General alleges that generators and marketers selling power into markets operated by the California Independent System Operator (“ISO”) and California Power Exchange (“PX”) have failed to file their rates as required by Section 205(c) of the Federal Power Act (16 U.S.C. §824d(c)) and numerous Commission orders requiring them to file transaction-specific information about their sales and purchases at market-based rates.  California wholesalers have also failed to properly file the rates they charged for spot market sales of energy to the California Energy Resources Scheduling Division of the California Department of Water Resources’ (“CERS”), which spent an estimated $10 Billion buying energy in the first ten months of last year alone in order to maintain system reliability in California.

Because all rates must be filed under the FPA, each and every non-filed rate charged by the Defendants to this Complaint is unlawful.  In addition, because the right to charge market-based rates is expressly conditioned on the filing of quarterly reports containing transaction-specific information about all sales and purchases, each of the Defendants to this Complaint has violated, and continues to be in violation of, its grant of market-based rate authority.  In order to remedy these serious and persistent violations of law, the Attorney General seeks an order of the Commission requiring California wholesalers to comply, on a prospective basis, with the Section 205 rate filing requirements.  Furthermore, to the extent that any non-filed rates are found to exceed just and reasonable levels, the Attorney General seeks refunds on behalf of California purchasers.

California wholesalers have failed to file their rates in the manner contemplated by Section 205; consequently, the rates charged for power sold to the ISO, PX, and CERS are unlawful and subject to refund.  The market-based rate schedules filed by California wholesalers do not provide sufficient notice of the rates to be charged, and do not permit FERC to determine in advance whether the rates to be charged are just and reasonable, contrary to the requirements of Section 205.

 The quarterly transaction reports filed by California wholesalers do not comply with the FPA’s rate filing requirements.

 Unfiled rates are unlawful and unenforceable, and FERC has no authority under the FPA to waive or “modify” out of existence the requirement that all rates must be filed.

 The quarterly transaction reports filed by the defendants do not contain transaction-specific data, negating any contention that their rates are on file.

 The failure to file transaction specific information constitutes a violation of Section 205 (c) and an express condition of the grant of market-based rate authority.

 FERC has repeatedly held that sellers with market-based rate authority must report their short-term sales and purchases (i.e., less than a year) on a transaction-specific basis the order to ensure that their rates will be on file, to evaluate the reasonableness of the charges, and to monitor the seller’s ability to exercise market power.

This requirement is mandated by the FPA U.S.C. section 824d (c)  (providing that all rates for “any . . . sale” of wholesale power must be filed and posted for public inspection); see also, 18 C.F.R. §35.1(a)(providing that all rated charged must be “clearly and specifically” set forth in rate schedules on file with the Commission).  Moreover, it is an express condition of the grant of market-based rate authority made to all generators and marketers with market-based rate authority.

For each transaction, sellers must report:  1) the buyer’s or seller’s name; 2) a brief description of the service; 3) the delivery point(s) for each service; 4) the price of each service; 5) the quantities to be served of purchased; 6) the duration of the transaction; 7) any other attributes of the product being bought or sold which contribute to its market value.

 In violation of section 205 (c) and their grants of market-based rate authority, defendants have failed to file transaction-specific information about their spot market sales to CERS.

 In violation of section 205 (c) and their grants of market-based rate authority, defendants have failed to file transaction-specific information about their sales of energy into the ISO and PX.

 FERC itself has acknowledged defendants’ violations of the quarterly reporting requirements.

Defendants have failed to file the rates they charged for short-term power sold to the ISO, PX, and CERS in the manner contemplated by either Section 205 or FERC’s quarterly reporting requirements, which are themselves legally suspect.  As a result, Defendants have violated, and continue to be in violation of, Section 205 of the FPA and an express requirement of their grants of market-based rate authority.  By failing to file their rates, Defendants have not only evaded any meaningful rate regulation by the Commission, they have also set back the Commission’s current efforts in Docket No. PA02-2-000 to investigate the causes of market failure throughout the West in 2000-2001.

In order to remedy these violations of law, the Attorney General respectfully urges FERC to:  1) require the Defendants to comply, on a prospective basis, with Section 205 rate-filing requirements; 2) to the extent the information is not already being provided in Docket No. PA02-2-000, require the Defendants to provide transaction-specific information to FERC on all of their short-term sales to the ISO, PX, and CERS for the calendar years 2000-2001; 3) to the extent that any rates for short-term power sold to the ISO, PX, and CERS are found to exceed just and reasonable levels, require the Defendants to refund the difference between the rate charged and a just and reasonable rate, plus interest; 4) issue a declaration specifying that the rates for short-term power sold to the ISO, PX, and CERS are not subject to the filed rate doctrine; and 5) institute proceedings to determine whether any other further relief is necessary or appropriate, up to and including the revocation of Defendants’ market based rate authority.

With respect to refunds, the Attorney General emphasizes that market-based rates are a privilege not a right.  Each of the Defendants was granted the right to charge market-based rates on the condition that they report their specific sales of energy in quarterly reports so that FERC could fulfill its duties under the FPA.  Defendants have violated the bargain, not just on occasion, but repeatedly.  In light of the unprecedented economic upheaval caused by the California energy crisis, equity demands that, at the least, Defendants be forced to disgorge any revenues they collected on short-term sales to the ISO, PX, and CERS at rates found to exceed just and reasonable levels.  Any other outcome would amount to an endorsement of future violations of the FPA’s rate-filing requirements and FERC’s orders.

The Attorney General notes that FERC has already imposed a refund obligation on Defendants for sales into the ISO and PX between October 2, 2000 and June 21, 2001.  See, San Diego Gas & Elec. Co., 96 FERC paragraph 61,120 (July 25, 2001).  While FERC concluded that rates charged prior to October 2, 2000, the “refund effective date” established in Docket Nos. EL00-95-000 et al., were also unjust and unreasonable, it concluded that it had no authority to order refunds of those transactions because the rates were contained in quarterly transaction reports, and were therefore on file with the FERC.  Id 61,506.  The instant Complaint demonstrates that Defendants did not report their rates, and that Defendants were operating in violation of an express requirement of their grant of market-based authority at the time the transactions occurred.  Therefore, there is no legal impediment to imposing a refund obligation on transactions that occurred prior to October 2, 2000.

Clearly on the basis of the California Parties’ finding that “there is no legal impediment to imposing a refund obligation on transactions that occurred prior to October 2, 2000” therefore the FERC must revisit the Refund Effective Date in docket EL00-95. This is just one example of one of the matters raised in docket EL02-71, which is directly relevant to docket EL00-95, and CARE’s complaints in docket’s EL01-2, and EL01-65, and it may provide a vehicle for disclosure of new information not available in prior deliberations on these matters.
PA02-02

CARE wishes to incorporate here the pertinent and relevant portions of the Investigation Order in FERC docket PA02-2 as taken verbatim from the Order. As in docket EL02-71, CARE position is that any failure on the part of Wholesalers to have properly reported the rates charged for power sold to the ISO, PX, and CERS is unlawful and subject to refund and therefore such market basis for such rates are void. The absence of a lawful rate under a market basis therefore requires refunds be based on the difference between the rate charged and the cost basis (not market basis) of the MMCP. 
Fact-Finding Investigation of Potential Manipulation of Electric and Natural Gas Prices 

ORDER DIRECTING STAFF INVESTIGATION

(Issued February 13, 2002)

Under the Federal Power Act (FPA) and Natural Gas Act (NGA), the Commission has a statutory obligation to ensure that prices in jurisdictional wholesale energy markets are just and reasonable.  Following Enron Corporation's declaration of Chapter 11 bankruptcy on December 2, 2001, allegations have been made that Enron Corporation, through its affiliates, used its market position to distort electric and natural gas markets in the West.  The Commission therefore intends to gather information on whether any entity, including Enron Corporation (through any of its affiliates or subsidiaries), manipulated short-term prices for electric energy or natural gas in the West or otherwise exercised undue influence over wholesale electric prices in the West, since January 1, 2000, resulting in potentially unjust and unreasonable rates in long-term power sales contracts subsequently entered into by sellers in the West.

 Accordingly, we direct Commission staff to undertake a fact-finding investigation into whether any entity, including Enron Corporation (through its affiliates or subsidiaries), manipulated short-term prices in electric energy or natural gas markets in the West or otherwise exercised undue influence over wholesale prices in the West, for the period January 1, 2000, forward.  Staff will also look into other factors that may have influenced contract terms.  In conducting this broad investigation, Commission staff may obtain information on any and all matters relevant to potential market manipulation in the West, including comparative information from other markets in the country.  Staff should complete its investigation as soon as practicable in light of the complexity and breadth of the investigation.  Among other things, the Commission may use the information developed by this fact-finding investigation to determine how to proceed on any existing or future FPA section 206 complaints involving long-term power sales contracts relevant to the matters investigated, or any formal FPA section 206 or NGA section 5 proceedings initiated on our own motion.

The Commission orders:

(A)
Staff is directed to undertake a fact-finding investigation to determine whether any entity, including Enron Corporation (through any of its affiliates or subsidiaries), manipulated prices in the electric or natural gas markets in the West, as discussed in the body of this order.  Staff will also look into other factors that may have influenced contract terms.  Staff is directed to report its findings to the Commission as soon as practicable.

(B)
For the purposes of this fact-finding investigation, the General Counsel or her designee is hereby empowered, with respect to any matters relevant to this investigation, to administer oaths and affirmations; subpoena witnesses; compel their attendance and testimony; take evidence, compel the filing of special reports and interrogatories; gather information; require the production of any books, papers, correspondence, memoranda, contracts, agreements, or other records; perform all other duties in connection with this investigation as prescribed by law; and designate other staff members of the Commission as officers of the Commission with all the powers enumerated in this order.


Your Order’s introduction “the Commission therefore intends to gather information on whether any entity, including Enron Corporation (through any of its affiliates or subsidiaries), manipulated short-term prices for electric energy or natural gas in the West or otherwise exercised undue influence over wholesale electric prices in the West, since January 1, 2000, resulting in potentially unjust and unreasonable rates in long-term power sales contracts subsequently entered into by sellers in the West” is directly relevant to docket EL00-95, and CARE’s complaints in docket’s EL01-2, and EL01-65, as it may provide a vehicle for disclosure of new information not available in prior deliberations on these matters.

CARE requests the following information be minimally provided by the wholesalers as part of your investigation in docket PA02-2 to provide a fair opportunity for CARE and the general public CARE exclusively represents to determine a just and reasonable refund for FERC approval following a public hearing in San Francisco California on such.

 For each transaction, sellers (public, private, utility, & CERS) must report:  1) the buyer’s or seller’s name; 2) a brief description of the service; 3) the delivery point(s) for each service; 4) the price of each service; 5) the quantities to be served of purchased; 6) the duration of the transaction; 7) any other attributes of the product being bought or sold which contribute to its market value; 8) the seller’s cost of each service; 9) data covering the refund period 01-01-00 forward.

 Sellers must disclose any previous, current, or pending litigation brought by citizens, consumers, utilities, governmental agencies, non-governmental organizations, shareholders, or any other party (covering the refund period 01-01-00 forward).

 Sellers must provide current and valid Certificates of Compliance with all LORS
 for all energy production facilities owned and/or operated in the state of California.

 Sellers must provide 1) the seller’s name; 2) a list of planned and unplanned outages 3) the address of the unit subject to outage; 4) the duration of the outage; 5) whether or not there was ISO or DOE order to dispatch power; 6) whether or not dispatch was required under ISO or DOE order to Must – Run or Must –Offer; 7) any special circumstances that violated Federal or State LORS with an explanation of such; 8) for data covering the refund period 01-01-00 forward.  

Relevance to EL00-95

CARE's 08-30-01 motion in Docket EL00-95
 expounded substantially the same theories and supporting facts by, among other things, demanding cancellation of the long-term energy contracts negotiated by the California Department of Water Resources in secret.  CARE provides additional evidence of the California Parties (and the AG in particular) expounding substantially the same theories as provided by CARE in our 2001 correspondence with the Attorney General’s Whistleblower division.

Some examples of theory expounded by CARE adopted by the California AG

In our May 20, 2001 correspondence with the AG CARE expounded our legal theory that wholesalers violated the State’s Unfair Competition Act, Business & Professions Code §§17200 - 17209.  

CARE alleges that Real parties in interest engaged in unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business acts or practices within the meaning of the Unfair Competition Act, Bus. & Prof Code §§ 17200 - 17209.  (See Hewlett v. Squaw Valley Ski Corporation (1997) 54 Cal.App.4th 499.)  This includes, without limitation:



a.
Proposing and pursuing approval of projects that significantly increases or contributes to the immense risk of harm to health & safety, as well as environmental and socioeconomic conditions, without considering or disclosing contingency plans for dealing with reasonably foreseeable problems, in an effort to preserve and maximize profits at the expense of the public. 



b. 
With actual or constructive knowledge that primarily due to the unprecedented, ongoing energy crisis, there is not substantial evidence to support them, inducing public reliance on implied and express false claims and assurances, which include that people residing and working nearest these project sites, the majority of whom are low income, native peoples and peoples-of-color, will be safe from adverse, potentially significant health & safety, environmental and socioeconomic impacts.   

After receiving a complaint and written disclosure of material evidence and information alleging violations that involve both state and political subdivision funds, the Attorney General may elect to intervene and proceed with legal action in the public’s interest. CARE asks that you do so in CARE’s behalf. 

Compare this with the AG’s suit filed in Superior Court in California on April 9, 2002.

Filed in San Francisco Superior Court, the complaints against Mirant, Williams, Powerex and Coral Power allege violations of California's Unfair Competition Act that are subject to civil penalties of up to $2,500 for each violation. The complaints state that the companies engaged in hundreds of thousands of illegally priced sales from early 2000 through 2001, which could result in civil penalties of more than $1 billion.

The complaints state that by violating the Federal Power Act the energy companies engaged in unlawful and unfair competition in California, which is prohibited by state Business and Professions Code section 17200. The state law considers unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business practices to be unfair competition. Penalties of up to $2,500 may be recovered in a civil action brought by the Attorney General or a district attorney.

In our October 6, 2000 complaint to the FERC in docket EL01-2 CARE expounded our legal theory that wholesalers violated Federal Anti-Trust law.  

CARE hereby petitions the Commission make findings that the events and circumstances surrounding the June 14, 2000 rolling outage in the San Francisco Bay Area warrant investigation by the United States Department of Justice of trust activities in restraint of trade by Independent Energy Producers, all sellers of energy and ancillary services into energy and ancillary services markets operated by the California Independent System Operator and the California Power Exchange; all scheduling coordinators acting on behalf of aforementioned sellers; California Independent System Operator Corporation; and the California Power Exchange. [Emphasis added]

Again compare this with the AG’s suit filed in Federal Court on April 15, 2002.

Filed in the federal court in San Francisco, the complaints charge Reliant and Mirant with acquiring an excessive number of California power plants in violation of federal antitrust laws. The complaints state that Reliant and Mirant, two of the largest energy companies in the world, controlled too much of California's available electricity supply, which allowed them to illegally exercise market power, limit competition and raise prices.

CARE notes here that CARE alleged Mirant, as one of the original party’s to test their market power on June 14, 2000 in our original complaint in docket EL01-2.

Corroborative Evidence Of The California Parties’ Acting In Concert With Wholesalers

CARE provides copies of three recent newspaper articles to provide further corroborative evidence of the California Parties’ acting in concert with wholesalers in seeking to deny CARE and the members of the general public CARE exclusively represents an opportunity to protest renegotiated long-term energy contracts prior to commencement of services under such contracts. 

As the April 4, 2002 news article titled Governor Seeking To Renegotiate Controversial Long-Term Energy Contracts 
so aptly points out “After four months of closed-door talks, state officials are close to agreement with Calpine on what would be the first and most important deal to cut the cost of the controversial multibillion-dollar electricity contracts the state signed last year at the height of the energy crisis.” Apparently the California Parties have failed to learn anything from “the long-term energy contracts negotiated by the California Department of Water Resources in secret” and are continuing their unlawful practice of denying CARE and its members an opportunity to protest these agreements prior to the commencement of services.
Additionally this article and other articles herein incorporated by this reference provide corroborative evidence of the California Parties acting in concert with wholesaler’s, in this case Calpine Corporation, to prop-up or “bail-out” its favorite wholesaler’s slumping bond rating. For example, the March 31, 2002 news article titled S&P warns Calpine junk rating to remain 
stated,

 “Standard & Poor's warned investors Thursday it is unlikely to raise Calpine's sagging credit rating for at least two years, predicting the formerly fast-growing power generator will be handcuffed by rising debt payments and falling electricity prices.” 

Another example is the March 29, 2002 article titled Restatement to lower Calpine 2001 earnings. 

Since Enron filed for bankruptcy in December, Calpine has faced questions about its large debt, liquidity and ability to maintain earnings in the face of lower energy prices. In addition, Calpine and other energy companies have seen their earnings and financial disclosures come under greater scrutiny.

Apparently in return for Calpine’s financial support for the Governor the California Parties are close to a “bailout” agreement for Calpine. The news article titled Governor Seeking To Renegotiate Controversial Long-Term Energy Contracts aptly points out Calpine’s pleasure with the deal.

``It's very close,'' said Bill Highlander, director of public relations for San Jose-based Calpine, the state's largest contractor for power. ``We're feeling pretty good.''


For consumers, a deal that reduces the state's costs could eventually help keep rates in check. For Gov. Gray Davis, who is seeking re-election, a deal could more immediately help deflect criticism that his administration recklessly bought overpriced electricity.


However, several consumer groups and observers have questioned whether a new deal would require more upfront payments as a kind of bailout for Calpine, which is working to stabilize its finances after the market deflated its stock in the wake of the Enron scandal.


Highlander dismissed the suggestion that Calpine is looking for a bailout.

CARE herein formally objects to such agreement’s execution, without the minimum sixty-day notice and opportunity for protest required under section 205(c) of the Federal Power Act (16 U.S.C. § 824d(c)) prior to any services commencing under such contracts, and we find it hypocritical for the State to then renegotiate Calpine’s contract in secret while litigating nearly every other power Wholesaler’s failure to properly notice rates in the spot markets. This article Governor Seeking To Renegotiate Controversial Long-Term Energy Contracts also points to the California Parties apparent forthcoming abandonment of consumers if these contracts with Calpine are executed.

In a complaint filed with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission in February, the state also alleged that it was forced to accept high prices and onerous conditions that generators such as Calpine imposed on the state during the energy crisis. Consumer groups have complained that the contracts will burden consumers for a decade.

Calpine denied asking for some of the most criticized conditions, claiming that many were proposed by Davis' negotiators, led by S. David Freeman, the former head of the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power. Freeman would not discuss Calpine's accusations.

A resolution of these problems would almost certainly mean an end to the state's complaint against Calpine now pending with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

But if the deal also involves more payments to Calpine in the next few years, it will undoubtedly attract attention. Consumer groups already fuming at how the Davis administration negotiated the long-term contracts promise to scrutinize the new deals, especially given the historically cozy relationship between the governor and Calpine.

``Neither California consumers nor taxpayers should be bailing out Calpine, one of the energy generators that took us to the cleaners last year,'' said Doug Heller, a consumer advocate with the Foundation for Taxpayer and Consumer Rights.

CARE apologizes for any redundancy in raising the issue of the long-tem energy contracts with those already raised by CARE in EL00-95. CARE in raising these comments and objections asks the FERC consider these actions by the California Parties, Duke Energy, and the Competitive Supplier Group, as evidence that reflects a continuing, callous disregard of our rights of public participation, and the continuing violation of our constitutional right of association under the First Amendment and related state constitutional provisions.  

Relevance to EL01-2

In CARE’s request for consolidation of docket EL01-2, which involves a complaint brought by CARE against IEPA, ISO, and PX for the contrived blackout of 06-14-00 in the San Francisco Bay Area, with the AG’s complaint in Docket EL02-71, we identified information missing from the FERC’s review which is essential to conduct a meaningful investigation of CARE’s complaint in Docket EL01-2. The Competitive Supplier Group, Duke Energy, and the California Parties, contend that the Commission December 15, 2000 Order in docket EL00-95 dismissed CARE’s complaint. This being the case why then did the FERC accept CARE’s 01-16-01 Motion for Rehearing in Docket EL01-2? CARE has operated under the understanding that pending a final decision on docket EL00-95 that this matter was still open for consideration by FERC, and if this is not the case, we respectfully request this relief pursuant to what ever reasonably effective procedural device you deem appropriate. 

In CARE’s original complaint we alleged that Calpine Corp and Mirant (then known as Southern Energy) contrived the outage of June 14, 2000 in collusion with the ISO by scheduling maintenance (a plant outage) for the hottest day of the year during a well-known period of peak demand for power. 

CARE contends that the ISO/generator trust contrived the June 14, 2000 rolling outage, to drive up the price of electricity, and justify expedited power plant construction in California, and did this in violation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, because of disparate impacts of the outage on low income and minority populations.

In the written information provide to CARE by the PUC, a written response to the PUC subpoena of the ISO, clearly lists the Calpine owned "Geysers" as two of three power plants down for "scheduled maintenance" on June 14, 2000. Clearly the decision to "schedule maintenance" on the hottest day of the year when demand is highest was a planned activity with ISO concurrence that resulted in the June 14, 2000 outages. It also includes Southern Energy [Mirant] owned Pittsburg#6, which was purchased from PG&E as a “Must-Run” generation facility. (See http://www.calfree.com/Exhibit_A_ISOonJune14.pdf)

In April 1, 2002 shareholders of Calpine filed a suit in Federal Court alleging securities fraud by Calpine executives, acting in concert with Enron.

This is a securities fraud class action on behalf of purchasers of the public traded securities of Calpine Corporation (“Calpine” or the “Company”) between January 5, 2001 and December 31, 2001, inclusive (the “Class Period”), seeking to pursue remedies under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). The essence of the action is that in order to overstate its earnings in 2001, Calpine manipulated its results in violation of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and SEC rules by recording revenue from reciprocal transactions with Enron in which Enron and Calpine sold energy to one another at inflated amounts. In manipulating these transactions, defendants had actual knowledge that certain public documents and statements issued or disseminated in the name of the Company to the investing public during the Class Period were materially false and misleading. Further, substantial insider sales by the officer defendants during the Class Period are probative of the defendants’ scienter in this case.
This litigation is relevant to CARE’s original complaint in EL01-2, the State’s complaint in EL02-71, the FERC’s investigation in PA02-2, and the San Diego Gas & Electric complaint in which CARE seeks to consolidate these matters in docket EL00-95. It is relevant to EL01-2 because it establishes a pattern of corporate character by Calpine executives. If Calpine is willing to defraud its investors why shouldn’t the general public expect them to schedule an outage for the hottest day of the year, to drive up the price of electricity, and justify expedited power plant construction in California? As we requested in our data request under EL02-71 (above) this type of litigation is relevant to the FERC in its investigation in docket PA02-2. 

While CARE concurs with the State in its litigation alleging violations of California's Unfair Competition Act, and Federal Anti-trust law by Mirant, we question the omission of such legal actions against Calpine. Perhaps this is to be expected “given the historically cozy relationship between the governor and Calpine”. 

Relevance to EL01-65


In CARE’s request for consolidation of docket EL01-65, which involves a Complaint brought by CARE against British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority, PowerEx Corporation, Mirant, and the Bonneville Power Administration, with the AG’s complaint in Docket EL02-71, we identified information missing from the FERC’s review which is essential to conduct a meaningful investigation of CARE’s complaint in Docket EL01-65. Further evidence of the relevance of EL02-71, PA02-2, and EL00-95, is demonstrated in the State’s litigation alleging violations of California's Unfair Competition Act, and Federal Anti-trust law by Mirant, and additionally the State’s litigation alleging violations of California's Unfair Competition Act by PowerEx.


The Competitive Supplier Group, Duke Energy, and the California Parties, contend that the Commission March 13, 2002 Order in docket EL01-65 dismissed CARE’s complaint, and CARE therefore no longer has any rights to request re-examine the matters raised in our complaint. This being the case why then did the FERC delay for eleven months to respond to CARE’s complaint and then only deny it on the basis of a lack of evidence. CARE’s understanding is that we have thirty days to file for reconsideration of this decision based on new information not available when the original complaint in docket EL01-65 was filed on 4-18-01 and if this is not the case, we respectfully request this relief pursuant to what ever reasonably effective procedural device you deem appropriate.

Closing


With all due respect, our understanding is that it is you as the administrative agency, and not CARE or other members of the public, that are responsible for conducting a full and fair investigation of matters as to which you have been put on notice by the submission of objectively-based, reasonably credible information, such as the information we have been providing you.  Furthermore, we continue to disagree with the assessment, and continue to strenuously object to FERC's position that civil rights matters involving the violation and enforcement of fundamental constitutional rights of due process and equal protection are outside FERC jurisdiction.  


In closing, CARE sincerely thanks the FERC, and the Chief Administrative Law Judge for patience in dealing with lay members of the general public, who, at most, can only afford a relatively small amount of competent legal guidance and representation.  We sincerely regret any inconvenience we have caused in our often-frustrating effort to participate in and lend public legitimacy to these FERC proceedings.  The inconvenience from our failure to properly follow your procedures and regulations, the complexity and technical nature of which obviously require legal and other expert assistance, is not only regrettable but serves to further point out CARE's desperate need for appropriate expert, professional and technical assistance.  


Consolidation is absolutely essential to give the public a comprehensive view of what has taken place in the very recent past, what is going on right now, and what's coming up next.  Without the comprehensive, consolidated approach, the public has no chance at all to become well informed enough to intelligently and meaningfully participate in this ongoing governmental process of unprecedented significance and magnitude.  The public has no chance to play any kind of part, or have any kind of meaningful influence.  


CARE has been and continues to be denied access to crucial information necessary to prove our case. To salvage an opportunity for a fair hearing on our complaints in Docket EL01-2, and EL01-65, and our intervention in docket EL00-95, CARE therefore moves that these complaints be consolidated with the proceedings requiring a public hearing to be held in San Francisco California, at dates subject to FERC discretion, under the Chief Judge’s 03-20-02 Order in Docket EL00-95-045.

Respectfully submitted,


[image: image1.png]Wa%%




Michael E. Boyd President, CARE 04-18-02

Exhibit 1

Duke Energy Confirms Price Gouging 

Duke Energy Confirms It Charged California $3,880 Per Megawatt at One Point
Friday June 1, 5:54 pm Eastern Time 

CHARLOTTE, N.C. (AP) -- Duke Energy Co. confirmed Friday that it sold electricity in California for as much as $3,880 per megawatt hour -- double the rate recently cited by Gov. Gray Davis as an ``obscene'' example of price gouging. 

Charlotte-based Duke imposed the charges in January, when California began suffering from rolling blackouts because the state's power grid managers couldn't buy enough power to keep the lights on. 

In statements Friday, Duke portrayed January's $3,880-per-megawatt-hour bill as an aberration that involved just 5,000 megawatt hours-- less than 0.1 percent of the total electricity that the company sold in California during the first three months of the year. 

Duke said its wholesale electricity prices in California averaged $136 per megawatt hour during that period, below the rates charged by other merchants selling power at the minute. 

Duke supplies about 5 percent of California's electricity at four power plants, including three purchased from Pacific Gas and Electric for $501 million in 1998. 

Like other major power wholesalers, Duke has fought to keep its electricity sales records confidential as a range of criminal and civil investigations seek to prove that they illegally manipulated the energy market to raise prices. 

The company confirmed January sales at $3,880 per megawatt hour after The Charlotte Observer dug up pricing information in quarterly reports filed with the Federal Regulatory Energy Commission, which monitors whether wholesalers provide electricity at ``just and reasonable'' prices. 

``On average, Duke's prices are not `gouging prices,''' Nancy DeSchane, a vice president with Duke Energy's trading arm in Salt Lake City, told the Observer. 

Duke's January price is the highest wholesale electricity rate disclosed so far in a worsening power crisis that has devastated California's utilities, increased customer rates and drained the state's finances. 

Power generator Reliant Energy of Houston outraged state government officials last month when it charged California $1,900 per megawatt hour to avoid blackouts last month. Davis blasted Reliant's bill as ``obscene'' and cited it as a reason why he is considering seizing the plants owned by Reliant, Duke and other out-of-state wholesalers who won power plants in California. 

Duke attributed January's high price to the financial problems of California's two largest utilities, Pacific Gas and Electric and Southern California Edison. With no assurance that it would get paid in full for its electricity, Duke decided to impose hefty ``credit surcharges'' that make up 80 percent of the $3,880 per megawatt price, the Observer reported. 

In March, Duke offered to waive the surcharges if the utilities paid their bills. Shortly thereafter, Pacific Gas and Electric went bankrupt. Duke, which has set aside a $110 million reserves to cover its unpaid electricity sales in California, said neither PG&E nor Southern California Edison have made payments on that sale.

Exhibit 2

Market Manipulation?
Former Power Plant Employees: Company Manipulated Power Supply Ind. System Operator Accused Power Co. Of Withholding Power Former Employees Scheduled To Testify Before The State 
SAN DIEGO, June 21, 2001 
(CBS) After deregulation, Duke Energy bought four California power plants. The company appears to hold the record for the highest price ever charged for electricity — almost $3,900 a megawatt. 

Before the energy crisis the average price was only $30, reports CBS News Correspondent Vince Gonzales. 

In an exclusive interview, former workers from Duke's South Bay Power Plant tell CBS News how they think Duke may have pushed up prices. 

"Their exact quote was they're making more money than they ever thought possible," recalled Glenn Johnson. 

Johnson, who was a mechanic at the South Bay plant for more than 20 years, supports what state investigators say happened across California — units were shut down unnecessarily in order to shrink the supply of electricity. 

"I felt I was directed at pieces of equipment that didn't need to be taken down at that particular period of time," said Johnson. 

Johnson also claims Duke ordered maintenance shutdowns even though he didn't have the needed parts. 

"Looking back at it, it would tell me they wanted the load limited," said Johnson. Asked if that meant less power would be coming out of the plant and higher prices, Johnson replied, "Correct." 

Ed Edwards knows why they had to wait for spare parts. A supervisor ordered him to get rid of them. 

"I explained to him, 'Man, that's good stuff. These are parts we can use.' And so I took a forklift and I disposed of some 23 palettes of good inventory," said Edwards. 

And after 22 years at the plant, he couldn't understand Duke's decision to constantly run the most expensive turbine that produced the least power. 

Asked why that would be done, Edwards responded, "I can't tell you. My opinion would be it had something to do with economics." 



Exhibit 3

Exhibit 4

Attorney General Bill Lockyer Brings State Action Against Wholesale Power Companies For Illegal Profiteering In California's Energy Crisis

April 9, 2002 
02-036
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
(916) 324-5500

(SACRAMENTO) – Attorney General Bill Lockyer today filed complaints against four wholesale power companies for charging unjust, unreasonable and illegal rates for electricity during California's recent energy crisis.

"We're attacking illegal profiteering from California's energy crisis on two fronts," Lockyer said. "We want FERC to order refunds for wholesale electricity sold at illegal prices in California. And, today, we are seeking to make the power pirates pay a California penalty for their illegal profiteering."

Filed in San Francisco Superior Court, the complaints against Mirant, Williams, Powerex and Coral Power allege violations of California's Unfair Competition Act that are subject to civil penalties of up to $2,500 for each violation. The complaints state that the companies engaged in hundreds of thousands of illegally priced sales from early 2000 through 2001, which could result in civil penalties of more than $1 billion. 

"In California, a business that breaks the law faces a unique state penalty for the unfair business practice," Lockyer said. "Our complaints today target a range of power companies – from very large price abusers such as Mirant and Williams to smaller companies like Coral. We're still looking at some two dozen power companies and expect to file more complaints for taking unfair advantage and charging illegal rates in California's energy market."

The Attorney General two weeks ago challenged as illegal all wholesale power rates that were not filed with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission as required by law. The petition seeking expanded refunds for California was filed with FERC in Washington, D.C. on March 21.

"By violating the Federal Power Act and charging illegal prices, wholesale power companies were able to distort California's energy markets and prevent meaningful review of electricity rates by the public, by energy buyers and by FERC," Lockyer said. "The power companies therefore avoided scrutiny of their price gouging and reaped hundreds of millions of dollars of overcharges and illegal profits."

The complaints state that by violating the Federal Power Act the energy companies engaged in unlawful and unfair competition in California, which is prohibited by state Business and Professions Code section 17200. The state law considers unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business practices to be unfair competition. Penalties of up to $2,500 may be recovered in a civil action brought by the Attorney General or a district attorney.

Based in Atlanta, Georgia, Mirant and its affiliates operate power plants in Contra Costa and San Francisco counties. Powerex, formerly known as British Columbia Power Exchange Corp., is a Vancouver, British Columbia, company that sells wholesale energy in the western United States. Williams Energy Marketing & Trading Co., is based in Tulsa, Oklahoma. Coral is an energy subsidiary of Shell based in Houston, Texas.

The complaints are the latest resulting from the Attorney General's investigation into potential illegal conduct by power companies and others during California's energy crisis. In March, the Attorney General petitioned FERC for expanded refunds and accused four major power companies of unjustly profiting by charging millions of dollars for emergency generating capacity that the companies never provided as promised. In January, the Attorney General charged Pacific Gas & Electric Corp. with illegal, unfair and fraudulent business practices that drove its California utility into bankruptcy after siphoning over $4 billion from the subsidiary and violated promises to the state to protect California ratepayers. 

**Note** Copies of the suits filed against Mirant, Williams, Powerex and Coral Power, are attached as Exhibits 4A, 4B, 4C, & 4D hyperlinks
Exhibit 5

Attorney General Lockyer Asks Federal Court to End Illegal Market Control of Power Plants Used to Drive Up Prices in California's Energy Crisis

April 15, 2002 
02-039
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
(916) 324-5500

(SACRAMENTO) – Attorney General Bill Lockyer today filed antitrust lawsuits against Mirant and Reliant, asking the federal court to order the two major energy companies to divest power plants to end their illegal control of electricity supplies used to drive up prices in California's recent energy crisis.

"Our investigation discovered that these major power companies were able to raise prices by illegally taking advantage of their control of California's electricity markets," Lockyer said. "The antitrust lawsuits filed today are aimed at restoring real competition by requiring these energy companies to sell off some of their power plants."

Filed in the federal court in San Francisco, the complaints charge Reliant and Mirant with acquiring an excessive number of California power plants in violation of federal antitrust laws. The complaints state that Reliant and Mirant, two of the largest energy companies in the world, controlled too much of California's available electricity supply, which allowed them to illegally exercise market power, limit competition and raise prices. 

Mirant's California plants generate 3,056 megawatts of electricity and control 44% of the northern California electricity market. Reliant's California plants generate 3,776 megawatts of electricity and control 28% of the southern California electricity market.

Attorney General Lockyer noted that other antitrust lawsuits may be filed as the state's investigation into California's energy crisis continues. The complaints against Mirant and Reliant, filed under Section 7 of the federal Clayton Act governing mergers and Section 17200 of the California Business and Professions Code, seek divestiture and monetary relief, including damages, restitution, civil penalties and disgorgement of illegal profits.

The attorney general also filed a state court complaint against Reliant, alleging that the power company made thousands of illegally priced energy sales in violation of California's Unfair Competition Act. Similar complaints were filed last week against Mirant, Williams, Powerex and Coral Power over illegally priced sales from early 2000 through 2001. State law provides penalties of up to $2,500 per violation.

These complaints are the latest resulting from the Attorney General's investigation into potential illegal conduct by power companies and others during California's energy crisis. 

# # # #

**Note** Copies of the suits filed against Mirant, and Reliant, are attached as Exhibits 5A, & 5B hyperlinks
Exhibit 6
Posted on Fri, Apr. 05, 2002     

Calpine deal seen as near

GOVERNOR SEEKING TO RENEGOTIATE CONTROVERSIAL LONG-TERM ENERGY CONTRACTS

By Noam Levey and John Woolfolk

Mercury News

After four months of closed-door talks, state officials are close to agreement with Calpine on what would be the first and most important deal to cut the cost of the controversial multibillion-dollar electricity contracts the state signed last year at the height of the energy crisis.

``It's very close,'' said Bill Highlander, director of public relations for San Jose-based Calpine, the state's largest contractor for power. ``We're feeling pretty good.''

For consumers, a deal that reduces the state's costs could eventually help keep rates in check. For Gov. Gray Davis, who is seeking re-election, a deal could more immediately help deflect criticism that his administration recklessly bought overpriced electricity.

However, several consumer groups and observers have questioned whether a new deal would require more upfront payments as a kind of bailout for Calpine, which is working to stabilize its finances after the market deflated its stock in the wake of the Enron scandal.

Highlander dismissed the suggestion that Calpine is looking for a bailout.

He said the agreement could include shortening the duration of some of the four Calpine contracts, which have come under fire for locking the state into high-priced power for one to two decades. He declined to be more specific about the new terms.

Michael Kahn, who has participated in the administration's negotiation efforts, said state negotiators are trying to fix problems with the contracts identified in a scathing report by the state auditor last year, including high prices and failure to guarantee construction of new power plants. Kahn predicted a deal within days.

``I hope we're closer than we've ever been before,'' Kahn said.

Calpine, which developed a close relationship with Davis during the height of the energy crisis last year, locked up deals worth about $10 billion. The state signed approximately $43 billion in total contracts.

The company offered the state lower prices on some of the deals than did other generators. But the contracts have still come under intense fire from the state auditor and from independent analysts.

Conditions criticized

In a complaint filed with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission in February, the state also alleged that it was forced to accept high prices and onerous conditions that generators such as Calpine imposed on the state during the energy crisis. Consumer groups have complained that the contracts will burden consumers for a decade.

Calpine denied asking for some of the most criticized conditions, claiming that many were proposed by Davis' negotiators, led by S. David Freeman, the former head of the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power. Freeman would not discuss Calpine's accusations.

Several of these conditions have become the focus of the new negotiations.

Calpine's largest ``peaker'' contract, which provides electricity to the state during periods of high demand, has been attacked for requiring the state to pay very high ``capacity payments'' to have the power available whenever the state needs it. Even if California buys no electricity under this contract, it must pay Calpine $90 million a year for the next 10 years and $80 million a year for the remaining 10 years of the 20-year contract.

Independent analyses of the contract have suggested the state could save more than $700 million by simply cutting the contract in half. William Marcus, chief economist at JBS Energy, rated that contract as the fourth worst of the 57 the state signed.

In the state's complaint with federal regulators, the Public Utilities Commission also complains that the capacity payments are unfairly high.

A smaller peaker contract linked to a proposed power plant in North San Jose has also been criticized because of its cost and because the state signed it long after it had locked up most of the power it needed. Several environmental and consumer groups have called on the state to scrap it completely.

Independent observers have identified fewer problems with Calpine's two largest contracts, which promise 2,000 megawatt hours of power every hour for the next decade. A megawatt hour is enough electricity to power about 750 homes for an hour.

The two deals offer some of the best prices the state was able to secure. But because the contracts force the state to take power even at periods of low demand such as the middle of the night, independent observers have urged the state to insist on more flexibility.

Possible repercussions

A resolution of these problems would almost certainly mean an end to the state's complaint against Calpine now pending with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

But if the deal also involves more payments to Calpine in the next few years, it will undoubtedly attract attention. Consumer groups already fuming at how the Davis administration negotiated the long-term contracts promise to scrutinize the new deals, especially given the historically cozy relationship between the governor and Calpine.

``Neither California consumers nor taxpayers should be bailing out Calpine, one of the energy generators that took us to the cleaners last year,'' said Doug Heller, a consumer advocate with the Foundation for Taxpayer and Consumer Rights.

Hard times for Calpine

Calpine, which a year ago was enjoying record profits and the warm embrace of Wall Street, has seen its fortunes sink in recent months with Enron-induced questions about the energy industry and the company's accounting.

Earlier this year, Calpine announced plans to dramatically scale back its aggressive power-plant construction program, including its controversial plant in San Jose's Coyote Valley. And the company has been working hard to shore up confidence even as its credit rating has been downgraded.

But Calpine's Highlander insisted Thursday the company is not looking for a bailout. ``More money upfront is always a good thing,'' Highlander said. ``But we don't need it.''

Davis negotiator Kahn would not discuss how the state might restructure its payments to Calpine but said the state is in a much better position to get a good deal today with energy companies facing regulatory threats, lawsuits and financial uncertainty.

The Davis administration has already begun pressuring other companies with long-term contracts.

``We are in a completely different environment,'' Kahn said. ``The markets are under control, the energy companies are in a far less strong position. I can do this in a way that's thoughtful.''

Contact Noam Levey at nlevey@sjmercury.com.  

Exhibit 7

Posted on Sun, Mar. 31, 2002     
S&P warns Calpine junk rating to remain
Associated Press

Standard & Poor's warned investors Thursday it is unlikely to raise Calpine's sagging credit rating for at least two years, predicting the formerly fast-growing power generator will be handcuffed by rising debt payments and falling electricity prices.

S&P analysts made their bearish comments during a conference call held to amplify why the credit rating agency downgraded San Jose-based Calpine. The move pushed Calpine's credit rating even further into junk territory -- a rickety neighborhood where it's more difficult and expensive to borrow money.

Calpine executives have vowed to lift the company's rating to the blue-chip level known as ``investment grade,'' but S&P analysts said that is unlikely to happen until 2004 at the earliest.

``It's going to be a long road to get to investment grade,'' said analyst Peter Rigby.

A higher credit rating remains a top priority for Calpine, which believes it made substantial progress toward the goal by recently curtailing its expansion plans, spokeswoman Katherine Potter said.

Exhibit 8

Posted on Fri, Mar. 29, 2002     

Restatement to lower Calpine 2001 earnings

By Chris O'Brien

Mercury News

Energy producer Calpine said it will restate 2001 earnings, slightly lowering last year's profit after the company belatedly discovered that emission-reduction credits it had purchased last year were not actually available.

The disclosure came Friday as the San Jose company filed its annual report for 2001 with the Securities and Exchange Commission. In a press release, Calpine said 2001 earnings would be lowered $11.5 million after tax from the $659.6 million reported Jan. 31.

The restatement will drop 2001 diluted earnings per share after extraordinary items by 3 cents a share, to $1.87.

Since Enron filed for bankruptcy in December, Calpine has faced questions about its large debt, liquidity and ability to maintain earnings in the face of lower energy prices. In addition, Calpine and other energy companies have seen their earnings and financial disclosures come under greater scrutiny.

Calpine tried to put those questions to rest last month by reducing its ambitious expansion plans and raising $2 billion in new financing.

Calpine said the restatement shouldn't affect its future earnings. The company expects to recoup the money related to the emission credits.

Calpine must buy the credits as part of the process of obtaining environmental permits to build power plants. According to spokeswoman Katherine Potter, the company bought some ERCs from a third party through a broker last year.

After reporting its 2001 earnings, Calpine discovered that the third party that sold the credits could not make them available. The spokeswoman said Calpine is investigating the matter and is suing the broker to recoup its money. She declined to identify the parties involved.

In the meantime, the company had to establish a reserve that cut its earnings, a change that was reflected in its annual report filed Friday.

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Contact Chris O'Brien at cobrienr@sjmercury.com or (415) 477-2504

Exhibit 9

See attached .pdf file labeled Ex9CalpineSECsuit4-1-02.
Certificate of Services

I hereby certify that I have this day served the foregoing document upon each person designated on the official restricted service list, via electronic mail, compiled by the Secretary in this proceeding in Docket EL00-95 et.al. Rule 2010(f)(3) provides that you may serve pleadings by email. I further certify that those parties without electronic mail have been served this day via US mail.

Dated at this 18th day of April 2002.

Respectfully submitted,

 




President, CARE 

(831) 465-9809

5439 Soquel Drive 

Soquel, CA 95073
� We fully agree that what caused or significantly contributed to the pending FERC complaints is "[that for the wholesalers (public & private)], from April 1, 1998 through January 200[1], when it declared bankruptcy and terminated all trading, the PX established new market clearing prices and quantities every hour. Similarly, from start-up through September 2000, the ISO established new market clearing prices and quantities every hour. Since September 2000, the ISO has established new market clearing prices and quantities every 10 minutes. Each hourly and ten-minute sale into those markets constitutes a separate transaction that must be reported under Section 205 and FERC’s orders dictating the manner in which rates must be filed."


� CARE is not surprised at Duke’s position based on their track record including their own admission that “the company confirmed January [2001] sales at $3,880 per megawatt hour” and the testimony of Duke employees before the State in June 2001. CARE incorporates by this reference the 06-01-01 AP article Duke Energy Confirms Price Gouging, Duke Energy Confirms It Charged California $3,880 Per Megawatt at One Point (Ex. 1), the 06-21-01 CBS report titled Market Manipulation? Former Power Plant Employees: Company Manipulated Power Supply Ind. System Operator Accused Power Co. Of Withholding Power Former Employees Scheduled To Testify Before The State (Ex. 2), and a cartoon (Ex. 3), which poses the rhetorical question – How Many Duke Power Executives Does It Take To Screw In A Light Bulb?





� CARE's efforts, which are well documented in the FERC record, should be rewarded because, as the FERC itself came to realize, the public interest requires an investigation of what CARE has long been calling "Enrongate," along with an investigation of what the Governor has referred to as an "energy crisis" of emergency proportions, and related matters.  Having helped compel the FERC to take action it had consistently refused to take is of sufficient public benefit to warrant an award or reimbursement of public participation costs. 


� Docket PA02-2, 98 FERC ¶ 61,165


� Local, State, and Federal Laws, Ordinances, Regulations, and Standards


� CARE's 08-30-01 motion in Docket EL00-95 expounded substantially the same theories and supporting facts by, among other things, demanding cancellation of the long-term energy contracts negotiated by the California Department of Water Resources in secret.  


� From the attached AG’s April 9, 2002 Press Release (see Ex. 4), and the San Francisco Superior Court, complaints against Mirant, Williams, Powerex and Coral Power alleging violations of California's Unfair Competition Act are attached as four separate Adobe .pdf documents which CARE hereby incorporates by this reference.


� From the attached AG’s April 15, 2002 Press Release (see Ex. 5) over the anti-trust suits filed in the federal court in San Francisco, the complaints charge Reliant and Mirant with acquiring an excessive number of California power plants in violation of federal antitrust laws, are attached as two separate Adobe .pdf documents which CARE hereby incorporates by this reference.


� See exhibit 6 for complete article.


� See exhibit 7 for the complete report.


� See exhibit 8 for complete article.


� See � HYPERLINK "http://www.calfree.com/Ex9CalpineSECsuit4-1-02.pdf" ��exhibit 9� docket No. C-02-1560 PJH a Complaint for Violations of Federal Securities Law an attachment Adobe .pdf file not appended to this document, which CARE incorporates by this reference.
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